
 

 
 

 

Christopher T. Nelson 
cnelson@axley.com 

608.283.6707 
 
 
VIA E-MAIL & CERTIFIED MAIL 
 
July 19, 2024 
 
Roger Lane 
Dane County Zoning Administrator 
Dane County Planning & Development 
210 Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. 
Room 116, City-County Bldg. 
Madison, WI 53703-3342 
 
Hans Hilbert 
Assistant Dane County Zoning Administrator 
Dane County Planning & Development 
210 Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. 
Room 116, City-County Bldg. 
Madison, WI 53703-3342 
 
RE: Notice of Appeal  
 
Dear Mr. Lane and Mr. Hilbert: 
 
Please be advised that Axley Brynelson, LLP represents Maier Farms Real Estate LLC (“Maier”). 
On March 20, 2024, Assistant Zoning Administrator Hans Hilbert issued “wetland use violation” 
to Maier. A copy of the violation is letter is enclosed.  
 
The violation stated one of Maier’s “options for compliance” included an application to rezone the 
tiled land out of the wetland zoning district. Based on this advisement, Maier filed an application 
to rezone its property on April 16, 2024. The County Board voted to deny Maier’s rezoning 
application at its meeting held on July 18, 2024.  
 
Maier now appeals to the Board of Adjustment the Zoning Administrator’s determination that the 
installation of drain tile and a pump on its property violates Dane County Code of Ordinances 
(DCCO) Section 11.07(2)(c). The Zoning Administrator’s determination fails to account for the 
fact that maintenance and repair of an existing drainage system on agricultural property is a 
permitted use under DCCO Section 11.07 and does not require a shoreland zoning permit. The use 
in which Maier engaged constituted maintenance and repair of an existing drainage system on 



 
Notice of Appeal 

July 19, 2024 
Page 2 

agricultural property. Maier is aggrieved by the Zoning Administrator’s decision because it 
prevents Maier from fully utilizing its property for permitted agricultural uses.  
 
Enclosed (in the letter addressed to Mr. Lane) is the $500.00 filing fee for this appeal.  
 
This appeal is timely because the appeal period was stayed during the pendency of Maier’s 
rezoning application.  
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me to further discuss this matter.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
AXLEY BRYNELSON, LLP 

 

Christopher T. Nelson 
CTN: eel 
 
cc. Patrick Maier, Maier Farms Real Estate LLC, Via E-mail 
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